
ADDENDUM 
#3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Lori Colon, Purchasing Agent 

 
To: All Bidders 

 
Date: March 3, 2015 

 
Project: C&D Recycling Equipment 

 
 
 
 
 

This addendum is issued in response to questions received, regarding the Request for Bids for the 
County’s “C&D Recycling Equipment”, so therefore is hereby made a part of said Request for Bids to 
the same extent as though it were originally therein. 

           
 

1.) With regard to the requirement for securing any necessary construction or trades permits, can 

you provide the name and telephone number and/or website of the governing agency 

responsible for issuance of trade permits (not referring to construction permits)?  This question 

includes an inquiry as to:  does the township in which the jobsite resides, New Hanover County 

or the state of North Carolina mandate/govern such trades permits? 

 

The governing agency is New Hanover County.  The County’s Development Services handles 

construction and trades permits and inspections.  Their main telephone number is (910) 798-

7060.  The link to the web page is http://planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com/permits-

applications/ .   

 

2.) With regard to the requirement for securing any necessary construction or trades permits 

(specifically construction permits) Green Machine Sales, LLC (GMS) assumes that shall not 

include permits specific to Life Safety and Egress Routing Plans.  Once at the ground level it is 

assumed that egress from the work area is the responsibility of New Hanover County. 

A Life Safety and Egress Routing plan will be developed by the Department of Environmental 

Management, in conjunction with New Hanover County Risk Management and New Hanover 

County Fire Services. 

 

3.) With regard to Section 3.4, Maintenance Support Services and the requirements for providing a 

detailed narrative; specifically off-site technical support and remote trouble-shooting reports.  Is 
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it intended that the awarded bidder remotely access the awarded bidder’s control system via 

the internet?  If so, does the internet connection exist already, if so will the awarded bidder be 

able to be issued a static IP address?  Or is this the intention of off-site technical support and 

remote trouble-shooting reports an analog approach via telephone conversations the intent? 

Remote access trouble shooting, for the purposes of the RFB, was intended to allow the 

proposer to highlight their firm’s ability to assist staff with correcting minor issues without the 

need for an on-site visit by a technician.   This can be accomplished using several methods, 

including those outlined in the question above.  The preferred method is one that is reliable, 

timely, and available during normal hours of operation (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST). 

4.) With regard to the New Hanover County Environmental Management Contractor Compliance 

Requirements, can bidders get a copy of the Department of Environmental Management (DEM) 

Safety Manual as the time of question answers on March 3rd?   

A .pdf version of the Safety Manual is attached to this Addendum  

 

5.) Will restrooms be provided?  In what proximity to the work area are they? 

 

Men’s and women’s restrooms will be available to installation crews and subcontractors.  They 

are located in the landfill office, which is adjacent to the project area. 

 

6.) Is this a prevailing wage project? 

No. 

7.) In Section 3.1 C&D RECYCLING EQUIPMENT it calls for a sorting platform canopy.  What is it you 

require for canopy type; vinyl, canvas or a more permanent solution with for example steel roof 

panels? 

A rigid (metal) frame and panels is required. 

8.) The RFB states a minimum  of four pick stations with drop chutes, but also indicates; “C&D 

Recycling Equipment shall be of a design that is optimized for the diversion of scrap lumber 

(including wooden pallets), scrap metal, gypsum wallboard, carpet, asphalt shingles, and 

cardboard (OCC).”  This equals 6 material types that would require 6 picking station; we believe 

the minimum should be six pick stations. 

As a note of clarification, the four pick stations was intended to indicate the ability to employ up 

to eight personnel (4 stations on either side of the belt, with a drop chute at each station for a 

total of 8 drop chutes).  We intend to utilize positive sorting techniques; carpet and scrap metals 

represent the smallest fractions.  Carpet will be removed during pre-sorting on the pad and a 

fraction of the metals would be removed from the ferrous magnet from the fines.  We 

encourage bidders to provide pricing for an additional magnet at the residue discharge end of 

the sort line within Item #6 (Optional Equipment Cost) of Section 4 (Bid Form/Price Sheet).  

Additionally, a six picking station option (12 drop chutes) may be added to Item 6, Section 4. 
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9.) Sort line description in 3.1.2 asks for 4 picking stations with drop chutes. This would only be 4 
people sorting, but county staff have asked for 8 sorting staff. Is the county requiring a minimum 
of 8 picking stations? Note that 2 picking stations are able to sort to one roll off container, so 8 
picking stations allow for 4 roll off containers and 4 different products.   
 
To clarify, the intent of the specification was to allow for a minimum of four (4) picking stations 
on each side of the conveyor.  This would require eight (8) drop chutes; two drop chutes for 
each of the four (4) rolloff containers. 
 

10.) The required materials for recovery by the County in 3.1.3, are six products. Scrap lumber, Scrap 
metal, Gypsum wallboard, carpet, asphalt shingles and cardboard. This would require 6 roll off 
containers. Please clarify if the county requires 4 or 6 roll off containers for sorted materials?  
 
Four (4) rolloff containers will be utilized under the picking stations.  The intent is to remove 
ferrous metals with magnets and to remove carpet during pre-sorting. 
 

11.) Does the County have a preferred size in terms of length and width for the concrete slab the 
recycling facility will be located on? This will help in the layout of the equipment to maximize 
efficient operation.   
 
The preliminary design to develop a traffic flow pattern was initially established at 180 feet X 
180 feet.  We will work with the winning bidder to finalize the layout based on equipment 
design and layout. 
 

12.) The RFB asks for a 1.5 inch to 2 inch screen opening but the addendum 2 states that 4 inch 
material is approved for ADC at the landfill. Can the vendor offer a larger screen opening to 
create more ADC from the system?   
 
The proposers can offer alternative screen sizes in Item #6, Section 4 – Bid Form/Price Sheet. 
 

13.) Addendum 2 states that the fines from the screen will be conveyed to a storage area. Can the 
county give an approximate capacity for the storage required in cubic yards? Is the vendor 
responsible for bunker walls on this storage area?   
 
The county will provide for any necessary bunker walls, curbing, ramps, etc. under a separate 
contract.  An initial meeting with the permitting agency indicated a preference for containerizing 
materials versus bulk storage.  In the case of the fines, we expect to utilize 20, 30, or 40 cubic 
yard rolloff containers, depending on the weight of the fines. 
 

14.) After seeing the size of materials such as cardboard and sheets of plywood at the current 
operation, would the County prefer a 72 inch wide sort line to allow these larger items to be 
sorted on the conveyor, rather than prior to the system?   
 
For the purposes of the bid, respondents must provide pricing that includes a 60-inch wide sort 
line.  If a sort line width of another dimension is recommended by the vendor, we encourage the 
respondents to utilize Item #6, Section 4 – Bid Form/Price Sheet. 
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15.) The throughput of 100 to 150 cubic yards per hour is only relevant if some type of capacity and 
purity tests are conducted, in order to verify the claims made by the vendor. Will the county be 
implementing a series of performance tests to validate the system throughput and purity?   
 
Section 3.1.2, sixth bullet/specification indicates a “Demonstrated minimum design throughput 
of 100-150 cubic yards per hour”.  Following final installation, the County will coordinate with 
the vendor to conduct three (3) supervised, timed test runs consisting of 100 cubic yards of 
mixed material each.  Excluding pre-sort and downtime due to any operator error, the averaged 
time of the three (3) tests must be less than or equal to one hour.  Material purity must exceed 
95%, as established by an initial visual verification or certified weight ratios if contested.  Fines 
removal must exceed 85% as observed through inspection of the residuals (residuals may not 
contain more than 15% fines).  If the throughput and purity goals are not achieved, the vendor 
will be given the opportunity to take reasonable action to correct the deficiencies.   
 

16.) Does the County have a preference for the type of screen used in the system? The use of a 

trommel or rotating disc screen would be problematic, but could meet the county requirements. 

Is there a preference for vibratory finger type screens due to the lower maintenance costs, 

reduced blinding, wrapping and spearing compared to trommels and disc screens?   

 

The County would give preference to a finger screen. 

 

17.) Will preference be given to domestically (USA) manufactured systems?   

 

Yes.  

 

18.) Does New Hanover County require a list of completed C&D Sorting System projects or customer 
references from each bidder?   
 
We ask that each respondent provide three (3) references for projects of similar size and scope. 
 

19.) Can you clarify the specified construction of the incline conveyor belt (i.e. steel or rubber belt)?   
 
The incline conveyor belt will be of rubber construction.  Respondents may add a steel incline 
conveyor under Item #6 (“Optional Equipment Cost”) of Section 4 (Bid Form/Price Sheet). 
 

20.)  Will the service conductors being supplied by DEP be sized for the “A” line capacity alone or for 
future “B” and “C” lines as well?   
 
Sufficient capacity will be supplied to power all three lines. 
 

21.) Does the County know the dimensions of the proposed concrete pad expansion of 25,000 sq. 
feet?  Or will you be looking for the equipment vendor to specify what those need to be?   
 
Please note that the location for installation of the C&D processing line has changed.  The 
existing pad (33,000 square feet) will be utilized during construction of the new pad through final 
equipment installation in order to continue to divert material during the construction and 
installation process.  After commissioning the new system, the existing concrete pad will be used 
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to stockpile and load out clean, sorted materials.  The new pad will be approximately 32,400 
square feet, based on a preliminary design of a reinforced concrete pad with a minimum 
thickness of 9 inches.  In order to develop a preliminary traffic routing plan, the general 
dimensions of the new pad were established at 180 feet X 180 feet.  This design will be finalized 
upon selection of, and consultation with, the winning bidder. 
 

22.)  Is an infeed hopper and infeed conveyor required to feed the system?  It is our understanding, 
following the site visit, that the system will be loaded with an excavator.  In that case, it is strongly 
recommended NOT to have an infeed hopper as this would be a significant issue for jams and 
bridging.   
While the infeed hopper and infeed conveyor are not required to feed the system, they are a 
required component of the base bid.  This ensures that all bidders are given an equal opportunity 
to provide a responsive, compliant bid.  Bidders are encouraged to provide alternative bids and/or 
optional equipment based on their experience with material types, equipment features, and 
process optimization. 
 

23.) In section 2.5, it states that a “Sample of Agreement – Draft Contract” is attached to the RFP, but 
we did not get that attachment when downloading the RFP.  Can we obtain a copy of that 
agreement?   
 
A copy of a draft contract is attached to this Addendum. 
 

 
24.) Should the proposed canopy be sized ONLY for the current system (A Line) or should we take 

future expansion into consideration when designing the canopy?  It will cost the County 
significantly more money to add on to the canopy than it will to design it larger to begin with.   
 
In the base bid, please provide pricing that includes a canopy that is sized only for the A 
line.  Optional equipment (such as a larger canopy) may be proposed in Item #6 of Section 4 – 
Bid Form/Price Sheet. 
 

25.) Will the County consider alternative proposals or options as what is laid out in the RFP?   
 
Yes.  All bidders must submit a bid that satisfies the requirements of the base bid 
specifications.  The ability to provide pricing for optional equipment is embedded within Item #6, 
Section 4 – Bid Form/Price Sheet.  Alternative bids may utilize the same form (Section 4), which 
must be clearly marked as “ALTERNATIVE BID”. 
 

26.) Which of the two pieces of equipment is the RFB calling to be loaded by the excavator (which 
feeds the recycling system) - the (a) feed hopper/in-feed conveyor, or the (b) vibrating 
screen?  Please see the attachment for visual reference.   
 
The material will be loaded directly into the feed hopper/in feed conveyor.  The material will 
then be conveyed to the vibrating screen. 
 

27.) Power - will New Hanover County be responsible for bringing 3-phase power to the system 
supplier's electrical control panel?   
 
Yes.  For additional detail, please refer to Addendum #2. 
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28.) What is the height of the 40 cubic yard rolloff containers planned to be used for directing the 
sorted materials into?  Eg. 8', or other?   
 
The rolloff containers are eight (8) feet high. 
 

29.) Will screened (1 1/2"-2" minus) fines and residue (material discharging off end of Sort Line) also 
plan to be discharged into 40 cubic yard rolloffs?    
 
Containerizing the fines and the residue are preferred by the permitting agency.  Based on the 
expected weight of the fines, smaller containers will likely be utilized to avoid over-stressing the 
rolloff truck’s hoist and frame. 
 

 
30.) In terms of the system throughput requirement of 100-150 cubic yards per hour, is the 

corresponding throughput requirement in tons per hour known?  Eg. does this translate into 20-
25 tons per hour throughput?  or 25-30 tons per hour, or other (if known)?  
 
 A conversion rate of 500 pounds per cubic yard was utilized.  This translates into a minimum 
throughput of 25 to 37.5 tons per hour.  
 

 

Attachments:    

1) Draft Contract 

2) New Hanover County Environmental Management Safety Management and Health Manual 

 

END OF ADDENDUM  
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  New Hanover County Contract #15-0017DRAFT 

Acct#7080200 800200  Req. ___________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 
         AGREEMENT 
NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
 
  THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this _____ day of 

____________________ 2015 by and between NEW HANOVER COUNTY, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as "County"; and 

_______________________________________________, hereinafter referred to as 

"Contractor." 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

 

  That the Contractor, for the consideration hereinafter fully set out, hereby 

agrees with the County as follows: 

  1. Scope of Services. Contractor shall sell, install and maintain 

construction and demolition debris recycling equipment,  to include turn-key installation, 

on-site training in equipment operation, and general maintenance and maintenance 

support services for the New Hanover County Landfill located at 5210 Hwy., 421 N., 

Wilmington N.C., as fully described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference.  

  2. Time of Performance. The term of this Agreement shall from Notice 

to Proceed until September 30, 2015. 

  3. Payment. County hereby agrees to pay for the cost of this Contract 

not to exceed a sum of _______________________ ($______________) Dollars.  

  4. Extra Work. County and Contractor shall negotiate and agree upon 

the value of any extra work or services prior to the issuance of a County  Change Order 

or Renewal/Amendment (CRA) form  covering said extra work or services. Such 

Change Order or CRA shall set forth the corresponding adjustment, if any, to the 

Contract Price and Contract Time. 

  5. Indemnity.  Contractor shall indemnify and hold County, its officers, 

officials, agents, and employees, harmless against any and all claims, demands, causes 

of action, or other liability, including attorney fees, on account of Contract or personal 

injuries or death or on account of property damages arising out of or relating to the work 

or services to be performed by Contractor hereunder, resulting from the negligence of or 

the willful act or omission of Contractor, its agents, employees and subcontractors. 
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  New Hanover County Contract #15-0017DRAFT 
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  6. Insurance.  Before commencing any work or services, Contractor 

shall procure insurance in Contractor’s name and maintain all insurance policies for the 

duration of the Contract of the types and in the amounts listed in this Contract. The 

insurance shall provide coverage against claims for injuries to persons or damages to 

property which may arise from operations or in connection with the performance of the 

work hereunder by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees, or 

subcontractors, whether such operations by itself or anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by it. 

  7. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance 

  7.1 Commercial General Liability 

    7.1.1 Contractor shall maintain Commercial General 

Liability (CGL) and if necessary, Commercial Umbrella Liability insurance with a total 

limit of not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

If such CGL insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to 

this work or services, or the general aggregate shall be twice the required limit. 

    7.1.2 CGL insurance shall be written on Insurance Services 

Office (ISO) “occurrence” form CG 00 01 covering CGL or its equivalent and shall cover 

the liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-

completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 

insured contract, including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract. 

    7.1.3 County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees 

are to be covered as additional insureds under the CGL by endorsement CG 20 10 and 

CG 20 37 or an endorsement providing equivalent coverage as respects to liability 

arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed 

operations of Contractor; premises owned, leased or used by Contractor; and under the 

commercial umbrella, if any. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 

scope of protection afforded to County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees.  

    7.1.4 Contractor’s CGL insurance shall be primary as 

respects County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees. Any other insurance or 

self-insurance maintained by County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees shall 

be excess of and not contribute with Contractor’s insurance. 

7.2 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
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    7.2.1 Contractor shall maintain Workers’ Compensation as 

required by the general statutes of the State of North Carolina and Employer’s Liability 

Insurance. 

    7.2.2 The Employer’s Liability, and if necessary, 

Commercial Umbrella Liability insurance shall not be less than $500,000 each accident 

for bodily injury by accident, $500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease, and 

$500,000 policy limit. 

    7.2.3 The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of 

subrogation against County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses 

arising from work or services performed by Contractor for County. 

7.3   Business Auto Liability 

    7.3.1 Contractor shall maintain Business or Personal Auto 

Liability and, if necessary, Commercial Umbrella Liability insurance with a limit of not 

less than $1,000,000 each accident. 

    7.3.2 Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any 

auto, including owned, hired, and non-owned autos. 

    7.3.3 Business Auto coverage shall be written on ISO form 

CA 00 01, or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the 

policy shall be endorsed to provide Contractual liability coverage equivalent to that 

provided in ISO form CA 00 01. 

    7.3.4 Contractor’s Business Auto Liability insurance shall 

be primary as respects County, its officers, officials, agents, and employees. Any other 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by County, its officers, officials, agents, and 

employees shall be excess of and not contribute with Contractor’s insurance. 

   7.4 Installation Floater 

    7.4.1 Contractor shall purchase and maintain in force 

Installation Floater insurance for the installation of equipment. Such insurance shall be 

written in an amount equal to the replacement cost of the equipment. The insurance 

shall apply on a replacement cost basis. 

    7.4.2 Insured property shall include portions of the work 

located away from the site but intended for use at the site, and shall also cover portions 

of the work in transit. 
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    7.4.3 Installation Floater insurance shall name County as 

loss payee.   

    7.4.4 Installation Floater Insurance shall, at a minimum, 

cover the perils insured under the ISO special causes of loss form (CP 10 30). 

    7.4.5 Any deductible applicable to the Installation Floater 

shall be paid by Contractor 

    7.4.6 If County is damaged by the failure of Contractor to 

maintain Installation Floater insurance, then Contractor shall bear all reasonable costs 

properly attributable to that failure. 

   7.5 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

    7.5.1 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 

declared to and approved by County. At the option of County, either the insurer shall 

reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects County, its 

officers, officials, agents, or employees; or Contractor shall procure a bond 

guaranteeing payment of deductibles or self-insured retentions. 

    7.5.2 Contractor shall be solely responsible for the payment 

of all deductibles to which such policies are subject, whether or not County is an insured 

under the policy. 

   7.6 Miscellaneous Insurance Provisions 

    7.6.1 The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 

the following provisions: 

    7.6.2 Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 

policies listed in this Contract shall not affect coverage provided to County its officers, 

officials, agents, and employees. 

    7.6.3 Each insurance policy required by this Contract shall 

be endorsed to state that coverage shall not canceled by either party except after  thirty 

(30) days prior written notice has been given to County, 230 Government Center Drive 

#125, Wilmington, NC  28403. 

    7.6.4 If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain the 

standard ISO separation of insureds provision, or a substantially similar clause, they 

shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 

   7.7. Acceptability of Insurers 
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    7.7.1 Insurance is to be placed with insurers licensed to do 

business in the State of North Carolina with an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A VII 

unless County has granted specific approval. 

   7.8 Evidence of Insurance 

    7.8.1 Contractor shall furnish County with a certificate(s) of 

insurance, executed by a duly authorized representative of each insurer, showing 

compliance with the insurance requirements prior to commencing the work, and 

thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each certified coverage until all operations 

under this Contract are deemed complete.  

    7.8.2 Evidence of additional insured status shall be noted 

on the certificate of insurance as per requirements in this Contract. 

    7.8.3 With respect to insurance maintained after final 

payment in compliance with requirements, an additional certificate(s) evidencing such 

coverage shall be provided to County with final application for payment and thereafter 

upon renewal or replacement of such insurance until the expiration of the period for 

which such insurance must be maintained. 

   7.9 Sub-Contractors. Contractor shall include all sub-

contractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates for each 

sub-contractor. All coverage for sub-contractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. CGL coverage shall include independent Contractors’ 

coverage, and Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that all sub-Contractors are 

properly insured. 

   7.10 Conditions 

    7.10.1 The insurance required for this Contract must be on 

forms acceptable to County. 

    7.10.2 Where circumstances warrant, County may, at its 

discretion subject to acceptance by the Risk Management and Finance Department 

accept letters of credit or custodial accounts in lieu of specific insurance requirements. 

    7.10.3 Contractor shall provide that the insurance 

contributing to satisfaction of insurance requirements in this Contract shall not be 

canceled, terminated, or modified by Contractor without prior written approval of County. 
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    7.10.4 Contractor shall promptly notify the New Hanover 

County Environmental Management Department and the Risk Management Office at 

(910) 798-7497 of any accidents arising in the course of operations under the Contract 

causing bodily injury or property damage. 

    7.10.5 County reserves the right to obtain complete, certified 

copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

    7.10.6 Failure of County to demand a certificate of insurance 

or other evidence of full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of 

County to identify a deficiency from evidence that is provided  shall not be construed as 

a waiver of Contractor’s obligation to maintain such insurance. 

    7.10.7 By requiring insurance herein, County does not 

represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect Contractor 

and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation of Contractor’s liability 

under the indemnities granted to County in this Contract. 

    7.10.10 If Contractor fails to maintain the insurance as set 

forth herein, County shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase said 

insurance at Contractor’s expense. 

    7.10.11 Contractor may apply to County for approval of 

higher deductibles based on financial capacity and quality of the carrier affording 

coverage. 

    7.10.12 County shall have the right, but not the obligation of 

prohibiting Contractor or any sub-contractor from entering the project site or withhold 

payment until such certificates or other evidence that insurance has been placed in 

complete compliance with these requirements is received and approved by County.   

    8. Independent Contractor. The parties mutually agree that the 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the County, and as such, 

the Contractor shall not be entitled to any County employment benefits, such as, but not 

limited to, vacation, sick leave, insurance, workmen's compensation, or pension and 

retirement benefits. 

      9. Default and Termination.  If Contractor fails to prosecute the work 

or services with such diligence as will insure its completion within the Contract time, or if 

Contractor breaches any of the terms or conditions contained in this Contract and fails 
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to cure said breach within two (2) days of County's mailing of Notice of Default, or 

otherwise fails to perform the work or services hereunder to the County’s reasonable 

satisfaction, County may terminate this Contract forthwith. Upon termination, County 

may, without prejudice to an action for damages or any other remedy, take the 

prosecution of the work or services out of the hands of Contractor. County may enter 

into another Contract for the completion of the Contract, or use such other methods as 

may be required for the completion of the Contract. County may deduct all costs of 

completing the Contract from any monies due or which may become due to Contractor. 

In the event this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the services by the 

Contractor, the Contractor shall be paid for work or services performed to the date of 

termination. In no event will the amount due Contractor in the event of termination 

exceed that amount set forth in this Contract. Nothing contained herein shall prevent the 

County from pursuing any other remedy, which it may have against Contractor, 

including claims for damages. 

  10. Termination for Convenience.  County may terminate this Contract 

for convenience at any time and without cause. Upon receipt of notice, Contractor shall 

immediately discontinue providing the work or service and, if applicable, placing any 

orders for any materials, facilities, and supplies in connection with the performance of 

the work or services of this Contract. 

           11. Non-waiver of Rights.  The parties mutually agree that either party's 

failure to insist upon the strict performance of any provision of this Contract or to 

exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the acceptance of any performance 

during such breach, shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this Contract. 

         12. Conflict of Interest.  No paid employee of the County shall have a 

personal or financial interest, direct or indirect, as a contracting party or otherwise, in 

the performance of this Contract. 

           13. Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall utilize no subcontractors for 

carrying out the services to be performed under this Contract without the written 

approval of the County. 

      14. Entire Contract. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding 

of the parties. 
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           15. Binding Effect. This Contract shall be binding upon the parties 

hereto, and their heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns. 

           16. Further Actions. The parties will make and execute all further 

instruments and documents required to carry out the purposes and intent of this 

Contract. 

  17. Severability. If any provision of this Contract is held unenforceable, 

then such provision will be modified to reflect the parties' intention. All remaining 

provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

           18. Inclusive Terms. Use of the masculine herein shall include the 

feminine and neuter, and the singular shall include the plural. 

          19. Governing Law. All of the terms and conditions contained herein 

shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

           20. E-Verify Compliance. Pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143-48.5 (Session 

Law 2015-418), Contractor shall fully comply  and certify compliance of each of its 

subcontractors with Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the N.C. General Statutes, including the 

requirement for each employer with more than 25 employees in North Carolina to verify 

the work authorization of its employees through the federal E-Verify system. County 

shall be provided affidavits attesting to Contractor’s and subcontractor’s compliance or 

exemption. Violation of the provision, unless timely cured, shall constitute a breach of 

Contract. 

  21.   Accounting Procedures for Refund of County Sales & Use Tax. 

Pursuant to G.S. 105-164.14(c), the County is entitled to a refund of sales and/or use 

taxes paid by contractors on purchases of building materials, supplies, fixtures and 

equipment that become a part of or are annexed to any building or structure that is 

owned or leased by the County and is being erected, altered or repaired for use by the 

County. 

 Contractors shall provide a “certified statement” containing the specific required 

information.  The certified statement must include all of the following information: 

a. the date the property was purchased; 

b. the type of property purchased; 

c. the cost of property purchased and the amount of sales and use taxes paid 

thereon; 
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d. the project for which the property was used; 

e. if the property was purchased in this State, the county to which it was 

delivered; and 

f. if the property was not purchased in this State, the county in which the property 

was used. 

 If the contractor makes several purchases from the same vendor, the certified 

statement must indicate each invoice number, the inclusive dates of the invoices, the 

total amount each invoice, and the state and local sales and use taxes paid on the 

purchase.  The statement must also include the cost of any tangible personal property 

withdrawn from the contractor's warehouse stock and the amount of state and local 

sales or use tax paid by the contractor. If subcontractors are used, similar certified 

statements by its subcontractors must be obtained by the general contractor and 

furnished to the County. Local sales or use taxes included in the contractor's statements 

must be shown separately from the State sales or use taxes. The contractor's 

statements must not contain sales or use taxes paid on purchases of tangible personal 

property purchased by the contractor for use in performing the contract which does not 

annex to, affix to or in some manner become a part of the building or structure that is 

owned or leased by the County and is being erected, altered or repaired for use by the 

County.   

 Examples of property on which sales or use tax has been paid by the contractor 

and which shall not be included in the contractor's statement are scaffolding, forms for 

concrete, fuel for the operation of machinery and equipment, tools, equipment, 

equipment repair parts and equipment rentals. 

 A certified statement must be provided with each pay request. If there was no 

sales or use tax paid during the period, the contractor shall provide a “Zero” sales and 

use tax statement.  . 

  22. Notices. All notices required hereunder to be sent to either party 

shall be sent to the following designated addresses, or to such other address or 

addresses as may hereafter be designated by either party by mailing of written notice of 

such change of address, by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested: 

    
 
 

15 of 246



   

  New Hanover County Contract #15-0017DRAFT 

Acct#7080200 800200  Req. ___________ 

   To County: 
   New Hanover County Environmental Management 
   Attention: Kim Roane, Business Officer 
   3002 U.S. Hwy 421 North 
   Wilmington, NC 28401 
 
   To Contractor: 
   _________________________________ 
   _________________________________ 

_________________________________ 
  

23. Assignability. The parties hereto agree that this Contract is not 

transferable and shall not be assigned by either party without the written consent of the 

other party to this Contract. 

           24. Contract Under Seal. The parties hereto expressly agree to create 

a Contract under seal. 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their hands 

and seals, the day and year first above written and by authority duly given. 

       
      NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
[SEAL] 
      __________________________________ 
      ________ County Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 
      CONTRACTOR 
 

________________________________ (Seal) 
 President 
 
 

[CORPORATE SEAL] 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary 
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This instrument has been pre- 
audited in the manner required 
by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act.     Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________       _____________________________ 
County Finance Director                County Attorney 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
 
  I, __________________________________, a Notary Public of the State 
and County aforesaid, certify that Sheila L. Schult acknowledged that she is Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners of New Hanover County, and that by authority duly given and 
as the act of the Board, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its 
__________  County Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by herself as 
its Clerk. 
 
  WITNESS my hand and official seal, this ______ day of 
_______________________, 2015. 
       ______________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My commission expires:______________ 
 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
 
   

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public in and for the 
State and County aforesaid, certify _______________________________, President of 
_______________________________________________. personally came before me 
this day and the foregoing instrument was signed in its name as its name and sealed 
with its corporate seal. 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this ______ day of 
________________, 2015. 
 

______________________________ 
Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:  ________________ 
 
 

17 of 246



   

  New Hanover County Contract #15-0017DRAFT 

Acct#7080200 800200  Req. ___________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  
  AFFIDAVIT 
COUNTY OF ________________ 
 
************************** 
I, ____________________________(hereinafter Affiant), being duly authorized by and on 

behalf of ________________________________ (hereinafter "Employer") after first being duly 

sworn hereby swears or affirms as follows: 

1. Employer understands that E-Verify is the federal E-Verify program operated by the 

United States Department of Homeland Security and other federal agencies, or any successor 

or equivalent program used to verify the work authorization of newly hired employees pursuant 

to federal law in accordance with NCGS §64-25(5). 

2. Employer understands that Employers Must Use E-Verify.  Each employer, after hiring 

an employee to work in the United States, shall verify the work authorization of the employee 

through E-Verify in accordance with NCGS§64-26(a). 

3. Employer is a person, business entity, or other organization that transacts business in 

this State and that employs 25 or more employees in this State. (Mark Yes or No) 

 a.  YES _____,  or 

 b.  NO _____ 

4. Employer's subcontractors must comply with E-Verify and Employer will ensure 

compliance with E-Verify by any subcontractors subsequently hired. 

This ____ day of _______________, 2015. 

 

   
Signature of Affiant 
 
Print or Type Name:  _________________________ 
 

State of North Carolina  County of  _________________ 
 
Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me, this the 
_____ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
My Commission Expires:   
  
  
Notary Public 

(Affix O
fficial/N

otarial 
Seal) 
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